
NEVADA LEGISLATURE - 54TB SESSION 
SENATE TAXA.nON COMMITTEE 

Minutea of Meeting Held 
February 24, 1967 r---·· 24 

The fifth meeting of the Senate Committae on Ta~ation was called to order at 
11:00 a.m., Friday, February 24, 1967, in Committee Room 50, State Capitol, 
by Chairman Gi.baon. All committee members were present. Alao pretent were: 
Mr. Maurice Davies and Mr. Frank T.Pagnamenta of Lybrand. Rou Brothers & 
Montg..-ry, Certified Public Accountants. Los Angelee; Mr. Ed Bowers, Execu
tive Secretary of the Nevada Gaming COUltliasion, Carsoa City; news reporters; 
and oth4r interested persons. 

Chairman Gibson stated that Mr. Davies had stayed over a day from yesterday•s 
public hearing. to work with the eouaittee. 

Discussion followed concerning the dbpa-rity between the 10.9% average profit 
to gaming indicated on page 126 of the Lybrand Report and the 5% profitelaitud 
at yesterday's hearing by Robbin• Cahill, for a $20,000,000 Las Vegas resort 
casino which Mr. Cahill said waa run in an efficient manner using modern 
business methods. Senator DOd.&• said he had talked with Mr. Ca.hill about 
this disparity after the heartag y•aterday, and Mr. Cahill had indicated 
he thought the operation in qu•ation involved a sale and l•,uebaek situation. 
Mr. Davies explained the Lybrand firm's method of figuring profit for a sale 
and lea•ebaek operation. 

Senator Brown auggeated the landlOt'd as well as the t•rumt be taxed a propor
tionabl',&hare, even though there might be no connection between the landlord 
and the tenant. aofar as the gambling operation itself wa• concerned. 

Mr. Bowers stated that there are situations in the 1tate where a casino is 
op&4ated by an operating group and rent predicated on the profits goes to a 
landlord corporation. 

Senator Gibaon asked whether the Gaming Commission licenses beyond the opera
tor. Mr. Bowers said it d~s not, but that wh•n the rent is based on profits 
then the lcdlord it also licensed by the COlllnisaion. 

Senator Dodge atked Mr. Davies to explain a letter doeument prepared by the 
Lybrand firm, which had just been handed to the committee.. 

Mr. Davies said that on February 11, 1967• Russ McDonald. Legislative Counsel, 
had aaked him to develop some projections aa to what rate of tax would have to 
be impond on alot machines, card games, and table games if a tax on capacity 
were to be substituted completely for the present percentage tax. Thi• letter 
report was the result of that request. It preaenta the Lybrarui·fit"ll}I conclu
sion that. to provide a tax which (1) would aubstitut• for the present per
centage tax and (2) would add somewhere between$4.7 and $5 million a year to 
revenues. the annual tax would have to be $1040 per slot machine, $2600 per 
card game, and $5200 per table game. 

Mr. Davies suggested as being more attractive than a complete switchover from 
percentage to capacity tax, a progressive change-over, i.e., keeping the present 

• 



Senate Taxation Committee - 2/24/67 
Page 2 

percentage tax and adding enough capacity tax to bring in the added $4-\ million 
the state seeks. This auggesUon was diseusaed by those present. · .. 25 

Mr. B<Mrera stated the Commitaion a.ow h.u 1056 gaming U.4en•eu and that, of 
these. 75 contribute 961 of the atate'• tax; the remaining 981 contribute the 
remaining 41. The Commis-eion would like a flat rate on re•trieted slot manMne 
o,erationt. They sanice about 7,000 machiua yielding $79.000 in tax per year 
to the 1tate. To ¢Clll'lle up with a flat rate. tlMly •usa••t a fee of $10 quarterly 
per machine for a U.cenaee with uro to £iv• maehiua; $20 quarterly per machine 
for six to fifteen machine•. Thia w«tld cover 900 of their licensee• and 
$106 1000 in revenue. From en adtail\iatrative standpoint., thia would be a tre ... 
m.endous aaot. As to a flat l'&te for ALL alot machines t.hrough<nit the state 
and then allowing variance• due to differiag local eitwationa, thi• would be 
difficult to aainitter becauae so many f•otor•• even within a single comimmity, 
would b:.ave to be eoneiderad in setting up the variances. Mr. lwers whole• 
heart•dly aar•d with Mr. Da•iea that a net income ta would he an admtnistra• 
tive nightmare. 

Senator Dodge aaked how many elot uchines are operated by the 75 Uunsees who 
contribute 96% of the etate 1s gaming tax. Mr. lower• said at l"at 27.000 
machines. 

The Chait"ffl4n asked Mr. Davie• ahout legislativ• aecess to wtblriala t:be Lybrand 
firm had eolle6ted in uktna the Lybrand report. Mr. Davie• said they would 
res,1Jstt vary strongly a dM\and to give up thete materials becaue, in order to 
get the inf orution from the individual U .. eenaeett i the Lybrand firm had told 
the licensees this infonMltion would be kept in confidence. He said informa
tion was g1vn to the Lybrand Ura vhieh is tu>t normally given to the Legis
lative Commlasion by law. 

Chait'lMn Gib&cn requeated Mr.lowers to give the conmittee copies of tu survey 
the Gaming Commission made oo 24 caeinoa, which ••rvey vat diuuased at yea ... 
c:.rdq' a pulJU.e hearing. Mr. Bovei-s said the survey •hoved ar•• gambling 
revenue altd dbl not include net.,ruir•nt., bar. etc.• income. Mr. Bowers said 
Mr. Malc;;olm of the~ Commt.aeiot1 staff had a.ho made a 1tudy of the effect 
of the Mathews petttton(fo1r a 300% inereaae itt gaming taxaa) on the 96% con
tributors to the st4te1 s gaming revenue. He gave the study to the committee 
fer their review. 

The Cha1C111Jin a•ked Mr. Bowers to appear be£are the committee again next 
Monday, Fet.ruary 21. Mr. Davies said he would be available to the Coueittee 
when needed, th&t he could be 1teached by phone at any time. 

The Cbairman announced that the committ•e would meet at 4:00 p.m., Monday. 
Februai-y 27. 

The uteeting adjourned at 11:20 a.m. 

R.esp&ctfully submitted. 

LoUill G18'flt • Slttltify 

I certify that the foregoing minutes are correct. 

Senator James r. Gibson - Chairman 




